From: Michael Mace <MACEM@pfm.com>

Sent: Thursday, February 8, 2018 8:28 AM
To: Brooks, Jody L. - Chief Legal Officer
Subject: FW: JEA NDA

[External Email - Exercise caution. DO NOT open attachments or click links from unknown senders or
unexpected email. ]

FYI — GS Executed version based on their prior comments — but does not assume you are OK with those comments.

Michael Mace

PFM

11605 N. Community House Rd., Suite 500
Charlotte, NC 28277

704-319-7923 Office

917-318-7869 Cell

From: Liu, Alan [mailto:Alan.Liu@gs.com]
Sent: Wednesday, February 07, 2018 7:08 PM
To: Michael Mace

Cc: Toporek, Jill

Subject: RE: JEA NDA

Mike,

In the interest of time, | have attached an execution copy of the NDA that | have signed. Let us know if your client is ok
counter-signing or if they have additional questions or comments.

Thank you.

From: Toporek, Jill [IBD]

Sent: Wednesday, February 07, 2018 2:37 PM
To: Mike Mace (macem@pfm.com)

Cc: Liu, Alan [IBD]

Subject: JEA NDA

Mike,

Attached is the NDA with legal’s mark up, pursuant to the items we talked to you about.

We are awaiting one other item internally, and hope to send this over, signed by alan, today.

Wanted to give you a heads up on the changes, that we think reflect our discussion. But, if there is any comments, we
can discuss.

Best,Jill and Alan



This e-mail may contain information that is confidential, privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure. If you are not
an intended recipient of this e-mail, do not duplicate or redistribute it by any means. Please delete it and any
attachments and notify the sender that you have received it in error. Unintended recipients are prohibited from taking
action on the basis of information in this e-mail.

E-mail messages may contain computer viruses or other defects, may not be accurately replicated on other systems, or
may be intercepted, deleted or interfered with without the knowledge of the sender or the intended recipient. If you are
not comfortable with the risks associated with e-mail messages, you may decide not to use e-mail to communicate with
Goldman Sachs.

Goldman Sachs reserves the right, to the extent and under circumstances permitted by applicable law, to retain, monitor
and intercept e-mail messages to and from its systems. See the http://www.gs.com/disclaimer/afg/ for important
information regarding this message and your reliance on information contained in it.




NON DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALTY AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made as of Februaryl, 2018 by and between Goldman Sachs & Co. .
LLC, having its principal place of business at 200 West Street, New York, NY 10282, (the
“COMPANY”) and JEA, having its principal place of business at 21 W. Church St.,
Jacksonville, FL 32202, referred to collectively as "Parties", and individually as "Party."

WHEREAS, the Parties are currently exploring the Company’s potential engagement as
financial advisor related to a transaction around JEA’s electric and water system (the
"Transaction"). In the course of discussions regarding the Transaction, the Parties may share
sensitive information and exchange information and data which is confidential and proprietary,
and in such events the Parties agree that the disclosure of Confidential Information shall be
governed by this Non Disclosure and Confidentiality Agreement (“Agreement”).

THEREFORE, in consideration of the receipt by the Parties from each other of such
Confidential Information for their mutual benefit in connection with the Transaction, and the
mutual covenants contained herein, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

(1) "Confidential Information" shall mean all confidential, proprietary and non-
public descriptive information, economic, business, technical, engineering, data, or other
documents relating to the "Transaction," which one Party (the "Disclosing Party") discloses to
the other Party (the "Receiving Party") on or after the date hereof in connection with the
Transaction, except Confidential Information excludes information which: (i) is or becomes
available to the public (other than as a result of a disclosure by the Receiving Party in violation of
this Agreement); (ii) was available to the Receiving Party or its Representatives from a source
other than Disclosing Party hereto providing the Confidential Information, provided that such
source is not and was not known by the Receiving Party to be in breach of a confidentiality
agreement that was applicable to the Confidential Information; or (iii) has been independently
acquired or developed by the Receiving Party or its Representatives without use of any
Confidential Information provided hereunder.

(2) Regardless of whether a Transaction is consummated, during the period for which
the obligations set forth in this Agreement are in effect, the Parties will keep such Confidential
Information confidential and subject to the terms of this Agreement; provided, however that the
Receiving Party may share Confidential Information to those of its affiliates and its and their
respective partners, officers, directors, employees, agents, consultants and attorneys (collectively,
the “Representatives”) who need to know such information (it being understood and agreed that
the Receiving Party has advised such persons of the confidential nature of such Confidential
Information and shall instruct such persons to maintain the confidentiality thereof); provided,
further that, any disclosure by Representatives in violation of the provisions of this Agreement
shall be a breach of this Agreement by the Receiving Party.

3) Recipient shall employ commercially reasonable efforts to maintain any
Confidential Information received hereunder secret and confidential in accordance with the terms
of this Agreement. Recipient shall not use Confidential Information for any purpose other than
that set forth herein without prior approval of the Disclosing Party.




4 The Receiving Party shall not itself, and shall direct its Representatives not to at
any time, use, reveal, report, publish, transfer or otherwise disclose to any person, corporation or
other entity any Confidential Information without the prior written consent of the Disclosing
Party, except a Receiving Party and its Representatives may disclose the Confidential
Information in connection with a judicial, legal, administrative, arbitration, or regulatory
proceeding in which the Receiving Party or a Representative is involved, to a banking or other
regulatory authority (whether pursuant to an audit, examination, inquiry, request or routine
supervisory oversight), or as otherwise required by civil investigative demand, judicial order,
subpoena, rule or law subject to the provisions of the next paragraph .

(5) (a) If the Receiving Party is requested or required or becomes legally compelled
by law, rule, regulation or legal process (including but not limited to by deposition,
interrogatories, subpoena, civil investigative demand, or similar process) to disclose any
Confidential Information, the Receiving Party shall, to the extent permitted by law and except in
the case of disclosures pursuant to regulatory oversight, provide the Disclosing Party with prompt
notice of such request(s) so that the Disclosing Party may seek an appropriate protective order or
other appropriate remedy and/or waive compliance with the terms of this Agreement. The
Parties further agree that if, in the absence of a protective order or other remedy not obtained, or
that the Disclosing Party waives compliance with the terms hereof, the Receiving Party agrees to
provide only that limited portion of the information that it is advised by counsel is required or
deemed necessary and to exercise its commercially reasonable efforts to assist the Disclosing
Party in any attempt it may make to obtain assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded
such Confidential Information.

(b) The Parties acknowledge that JEA is a body politic and corporate that is
subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and related statutes known as the "Public Records
Laws". If a request is made to view Confidential Information, JEA will notify COMPANY of
such request and the date that such records will be released to the requester unless COMPANY
obtains a court order enjoining such disclosure. If COMPANY fails to obtain that court order
enjoining disclosure, JEA will release the requested Confidential Information on the date
specified.

(c) Upon the Disclosing Party's written request, the Receiving Party shall return
or destroy all Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party, and the Receiving Party and its
Representatives shall not retain any copies of such Confidential Information; provided, however
that the Receiving Party and its Representatives may retain copies of Confidential Information,
subject to this Agreement, in accordance with its internal record retention policies and
procedures and for legal, compliance or regulatory purposes.

(6) (a) This Agreement and the discussion or presentation of any materials in
connection with the Transaction (“Presentation”) are neither an expressed nor an implied
commitment by COMPANY to act in any capacity with respect to JEA’s electric and water
system, which commitment shall only be set forth in an engagement letter to be executed
between COMPANY and JEA, and do not restrict COMPANY from being engaged by, or
otherwise acting with, any other party in any capacity for any other utility. For the avoidance of
doubt, each Party acknowledges that COMPANY has close relationships in the sector, including
with various potential counterparties that may be presented in the Presentation, may be doing
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similar work for others with respect to the parties presented in the Presentation, and may
ultimately work with another party on an assignment, including with those parties presented in
the Presentation. In the event COMPANY is not formally engaged by JEA as set forth in an
engagement letter between the Parties, the Presentation and any materials related thereto may not
be disclosed to any third party or circulated or referred to publicly or used for or relied upon for
any other purpose without the prior written consent of COMPANY.

(b) You acknowledge that neither the COMPANY nor any of its affiliates, nor any of the
COMPANY’S or such affiliates' respective partners, officers, directors, employees, advisors or
agents, have made or will be making any express or implied representation or warranty as to the
accuracy or completeness of any of the Confidential Information including the Presentation
(other than representations and warranties, if any, that might be expressly set forth in a definitive
agreement executed and delivered between you and the COMPANY with respect to a
Transaction), and you agree that neither the COMPANY nor any of the foregoing persons or
entities will have any liability to you or any of your Representatives resulting from the use of any
Confidential Information.

(7)  Except as otherwise permitted herein, neither Party hereto will, without the prior
written consent of the other Party hereto, disclose to any person and will direct their
Representatives not to (except such party’s Representatives or as required or requested, subject to
section 5(a)) (i) the fact that discussions are taking place concerning a possible Transaction
between the Disclosing Party and the Receiving Party, (ii) the fact the Receiving Party is
considering a possible Transaction with the Disclosing Party, or (iii) any of the terms, conditions
or other facts with respect to any such possible Transaction, including the status thereof and any
materials provided or generated by the Receiving Party in connection therewith (for the purposes
hereof, the foregoing shall be considered Confidential Information.

(8) The Parties' obligations concerning non-disclosure and use of Confidential
Information contained in this Agreement shall continue for two years from the date hereof.

(9)  The Parties agree that in the event of a breach of this Agreement, the Disclosing
Party providing the Confidential Information shall be entitled to seek equitable relief, including
injunction and specific performance, in addition to all other remedies available at law or equity.

(10) This Agreement shall be interpreted, governed and construed under the law of the
State of New York.

(11) This Agreement shall in no way be construed to establish any relationship
between COMPANY and JEA with respect to the Transaction that is the subject of this
Agreement.

(12) This Agreement sets forth the full and complete understanding of the Parties to
this Agreement and there are no other representations, covenants or agreements, expressed or
implied, other than those expressly set forth herein. No amendments or modifications hereof
shall be valid unless evidenced in writing and executed on behalf of both of the Parties.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have duly executed this Agreement as of the date first

written above,

GOLDMAN SACHS & CO.LLC

By, C JV(/Q )

Title: Managing Director

JEA

By:

Title:

Date:




